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CHAPTER I
THE PROBLEM

Statement of the problem. The purpose of the study

iz to report the history of the library of Kansas 3tafte
Teachers College, Emporia, ncw known as the Willlam Allen
¥hite Library. It will cover the years from 1930 to 195G.
The study will continue, in part, an carlier studyl
which covered the years from 10665 to 1930. It will include
the plamning for and the subseguent bullding of a new
library, the change of the name of the library from Kellogg
to William Allen White, the ccllections, personnel and
departments and services. Brief attention will be given to
the library school as its administration has been a part of
the responsibility of the librarian. A more complete study
of the library school 1s in process. This thesis will con-

clude with some suggestions for future study.

Scope of the study. The scope of the study will be
determined by information avallable within the library.

This will include (1) officlal reports of the institution,
(2) official library records, (3) various publications of

lgarcld Henry Stephens, "A Study of the Growth and
Development of the Library of Kansas State Teachers College,
Emporia, 1865-1930" (unpublished Master's thesis, Kansas
State Teachers College of Bmporia, Kansas, 195%).



b4
the school, (L) newspaper accounts of events and (5) personal

interviews.

Significance of the study. The William Allen White

Library of Kensas State Teachers College, Emporia, as it

has been called since 1952, is an important contribution %o
the continued high rating the iInstitution holds in the
national educational picture. The ever-expanding collections
of materiel for learning, the growing number of services to
students and faculty, its assistence to those 1ln research

es well as to students attending the only library school in
the state of Kansas, make this library an ilmportant institu-

$1lon,

Procedures used. There are housed ln the Willism

Allen White Library various publications and records of the
Eansas State Teachers College, Emporia. From these sources
officlael data for this study were chtained. MNembers of the
staff, both current and retired, were interviewed for per-
sonal observatlions. Some were interviewed by correspondence
when personal contacts were not possible.

Bound volumes of The Emporia Gagette and The Bulletin,

the official school news publication, as well as coples of
various other campus publications which have provided state~
ments about and reports of events have been ccnsulted.

Further information was obtained from The Biennial Report,




the official report made by the president to the governor
and the Board of Trustees, including expressions of philoso-
phies and objectives of education.

Chapter II reviews a previous study made of the
history of the library from 1865 to 1530, Chapters III and
IV report findings ebout the Kellogg building and the
William Allen White building. Descriptions of ths verious
collsctions of the library ere found in Chepter V and the
departmental divisions of the library are reviewed in
Chapter VI. The library personnel for the years covered in
this study are listed in Chapter VII and the last chapter

presents conclusions and recommendations.



CHAPTER II
REVIEW OF PREVIOUS sSTUDY

A study was completed in April, 1935, which was titled,
A Study of the Growth and Development of the Library of
Kansas State Teachers College, Emporias, 1865-1930."1 This
study, written by Harold H. Stephens as part of the reguire-
ments for a Master's Degree, reviewed the beginning and
development of the library on the campus at Kansas State
Teachers College, Emporia,

According to Stephens, the Kansas State Normal School
began its first term of instruction on February 15, 1865,
with an enrollment of eishteen students. The library con-
sisted of two books, "a Bible and Websterts Dictionary."e
The first library bullding, completed in April, 1503, was
built with an eppropriastion of $60,000.00 made by the State
Legislature early in 1901, It 1s referred to as "Kellogg
Library Building,”> but no mention is made of a formal
selection of that name. It was considerzd "one of the

finest in the atate™ and housed easily the collection of

lyarcld Henry Stephens, "A Study of the Growth and
Development of the Library of Kansas State Teachers College,
Emporia, 1865-1930" (unpubllished Master's thesis, Kansas
State Teachers College of Emporia, Kansas, 1955).

27bid., Pe 3 31bid,, . 16.
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16,000 books. ®on July 1, 1930 the book collection totaled
69,551 volumes" and was overflowing the ecapacity of a
building designed to house approximately 35,000 volumes.
The need for new and larger quarters was evident.

The services and personnel grew in proportion. In
1902, the Library School was established, and a library
science "ecllection of professional books, bulletins and
periodicals was asncmblod.'6 In 1911 a children's depart-
ment was opened, and in September, 1922 the Roosevelt High
School Library was established, There was a separate
reference eollection in 1912, and during the years this
department collected and maintained e¢lippings, pamphlets,
history periodicals, an extensive mounted and classifled
plcture collsction, and one called the Normsllana collection
which contained publications by and about the institution,
In 1909 the library became a depository for govermment
publications which were handled in the reference department.
"The maill loan service of Kellogg Library--the second of its
kind in the United States--was inaugurated in January, 1913.7
The service proved very popular, The highest figure recorded
in this study is 5,912 pleces losned in 192l.°

41259-, p. 17. 5;b1d., P 40.
bvid., p. le. Tbid., p. 75.

B1bid., p. 79.



The first full time librarian assumed her duties in
1892, and the records indicate some assistants with pro-
fessional training. There is listed a suecession of
eataloguers and assistants., By 1930 the ataff consisted of
8ix department heads,

There are several lactors indicated to support the
need for a new bullding, The school enrollment had increased
arproximately 500 percent since the ersction of the Kellogg
building in 1901, which was built for an enrollment of 250,
The reading space was not suffielent for the undergraduate
students, and there was no available room for individusl or
seminar rooms for those deing graduate study, or for faculty
members to use, The gquarters for the administrative staff
were inadequate, and the design of the bullding, with a
large main stairway in the middle of the room carried too
mich nolse upstairs from the main floor entrance, and also
wasted much space.

The Kellogg building had served well, but had cutlived
its usefulness,

There 1s no other history avallable that confines
1t3el1f tc the study of this library. In officlal records
of the college are to be found ltems concerned with library
development, but they are isolated, not classifled, and must
ve found through searching,



There has recently been completed a bibliography of
publications of the campus at Kansas State Teachers College,
Emporia. This bibliography, titled "Historical Research
Pertaining to the History of K. S, T. C, of Emporia,® by
Barbara Hyden, lists school publications and where they are
located. At the present time (Jume 29, 1959) this bibli-
ography may be found in the Williem Allen White Library,?

IBarbara Hyden, "Historical Research Pertaining to

the History of K. S. T. C. of Emporia, 1959" (typewritten
report).




CHAPTER III
KELLOGG LIBRARY
I. NEW BUILDIRG NEEDED

From 1930, through the years of World War II,
emphasis in many reports and articles concerning Kellogg
Library at Kansas State Teachers College, Emporia was on
the need for a new library. Typlcal of titles is this one:
"Library Inadequacy . . . Cne of our great problems is a
new library,"l es found in The Bulletin on October G, 1931:

and again on July 13, 1937, appeared this headline: "&tu-
dents Work Against Many Handicaps in a Library Which Was
Erected to an Enrcllment of 250."2

Almost every issue of The Bulletin, which was staffed

by students, contained either an article about some of the
inconveniences or letters from disgruntled students, or
both. The building had cracks, and when it rained water
leaked on valuable books.>

gne student complained that "I can't go into the
« « o« place any more without feeling like a sardine in a

lthe Bulletin, October 9, 1931.
21bid., July 13, 1937.
31bid., october 9, 1937.
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ogm,""L and some students were using the city library. There
were pleas for students to exhibit initiative sulfficient to
arouse agltation and get the attention of the state legisla-
ture as to recognize the acute need for new quarters.5

Space everywhere was utilized to the fullest extent,
Shelves were built to the ceilings wherever possible, and
ladders were used tc reach them,

There were other complications--the growing c¢ollee-
tions ktept adding welght to an o0ld bullding and in 1931 the
state architect condemned the floor of one of the corner
rooms, This necessitated steel beams to prop up the sagging
floor.6

ITI. LIBRARY ANNEX

To allevizte some of the stress the reserve library
was moved, in the fall of 1933, to the rirst floor of the
building which had originally been built for a cafeteria.’
This was across the campus from the library building, and
was 1lnconvenlent, but it relieved some of the congestion at

Kellogg. The room was panelled with wood taken from the

#;g;g., October 9, 1931.

5Inid., October 13, 1931,

ﬁ;g;g., November 13, 1931.

Tsulletin of Information, February, 1934, p. 23.
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president's office in the old administration building, which
had stood where the Sunken Garden now 1s.2 It had a seating
capacity of 200 and was "maintained for the exelusive use
of undergraduate students in their pursuit of assigned read-
ings in books that have been placed on reserve."’

III. REQUESTS FOR APPROFPRIATION

There were regular appeals in the biennial reports
made by the president to the governor and the Board of
Regents concerning the need for a lerger buillding. The
grovwth in enrollment waus cited as "approximetely 500 percent"
over the student body of "200-300 students for which the
building had been designed,"1® Mr, Baber, librerian, pre-
sented the results of somo counts in the report of June 30,
1936. These were taken at intervals and indicated that
2,000 voclumes were passed over the reserve desk dally. The
mail loan service sent an average of 1,200 packages anmuslly
which contained approximetely 5,500 units of library mate-
rial.l1

8The Bulletin, November 13, 1956.

7Bulletin of Informstion, February, 1934, p. 23.
1031ennia) Report, June 30, 1934, p. 19.
lpiennial Report, June 30, 1936, p. 16.



1n
In the report for the two years ending June 30, 1938,
was a request for an appropriation of §125,000 for 1940 and
£125,000 for 19!4112 to be used for a library; and this state-
ment:

Added tc the dire need of the institutlion for a new
library building is the faet that the schocl has an
opportunity tec secure federal ald for such a project.

In the event of federal ald, the gquarter mlllion dollars

requested in this report !guld be reduced in the amount
of federal participation,

The Emporla Gazette for September 16, 1938 carried

two significant articles, COne with a Topeka, Kansas date-
line anncunced that the State Board of Regents authcrized
heads of Kansas educational institutions to prepare plans

for needed buildinga. The other article stated that accord-~
ing to President T. ¥W. Butcher, plens for Emporia State's

new quarter million dollar library had been drawn and approved
by the State Board of Regents and application had been made
for FPWA fund'.lu In spite of this, it was still to be =2

number of years before the building became & reality.

1233ennlal Reporg, June 30, 1938, p. 27.
L31big., p. 26.
1“ggg Bumporisz Gazette, September 15, 1938.




CHAFTER IV
THE WILLIAM ALLEN WHITE LIBRARY
I. WILLIAM ALLEN WHITE

William Allen White, for whom the new library is
named, was a native Kansan, born in Emporia on February 10,
1868. His parents moved from Emporia soon after his birth,
but he returned in 1295 and bouzht the newspaper now called
The Emporia Gazette, which he operated until his death on
January 29, 1944. He became a netional figure in many ways.
His editorilsls on diverse subjects, many of a politleal
neture, became nationally known. He also wrote several

books.,.
I1. HAME CHOSEN FOR NEW RUILDIRG

An item from the minutes of the meeting of the Kansas
State Board of Regents for March 17, 194l reads:

NAME LIBRARY AT EMFPORIA, It was moved by Mr, Harris
and seconded by Mr, McLaughlin thet the new library
bullding at the Kansas State Teachers College at Emporia,
when completed, be named THE WILLIAM ALLEN WHITE LI&ARI
in honor of ii'he late Williem Allen Hhito. Motion carried
unanimously.

1Board of Regents, State of EKansas, Minutes of
Meeting, March 17, 19Lk.



13
III. P"THE THRILL OF THE YEAR"

Just as the earlier hue and cry had been "We need a
new library building," the tenor of guestions later was
"When will they start to bulld?"™ Mr, C. B. Baber, Librerian
at Kansas State Teachers College, Emporia sums up the situa-
tion in @ Library News-Letter for Spring, 1945, titled
"Spring Forecast.”

"The thrill of the year . . « K, 3., T. C, announces a
new library."® I experlenced a trace of a smile when I
dlsecovered that I was reading from an old Newsletter
bearing the date of May, 1941. Those were stirring
words then! The Kansas legislature had early in that
yoear made en appropriation for the long awalited struc-
ture. After the many critieal years of struggling along
with an antiquated and erowded building which continu-
ously ilmpéded all library progress, we belleved that our
dreams had at last come true, But not 3o, for suddenly
priorities struek, then war . . . and the treasure we
were just Opening our hands to receive was snateched
away.

Two years passed. Another legislature met. The
original sum was reappropriated, Our hopes rose high
againl Maybe the war would end., HMaybe we could repeat
our eager announcement of 1941, "The thrill of the year."

But disillusiomment again perched on our banners,
Another two years passed. Another legislature mot--
the sessaion of 1945. Again the original sum was
reappropriated, end an additionsl §100,000 was allowed

~-making a tot sal of $300,000 for the building and $50,000
for eguipment.

Agaln our hopes are soaring., We are beginning ocur
planning all over again, This time our dream will come
trus! Once more we anncunce, "The thrill of the year.”

Ce Ps Baber.2

-

2Libra ry School Newsletter, Spring, 1945.
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There was to be more delsy. Procuring materials was
still a problem, but scaring costs of both materlals and
labor were the major deterrents, It was not until December,
1949, that Mr. Baber was able to make the long dreamed of
announcement,

« « o« 8nd now for the latest information: We are thrilled
te be able to say that the contracts have been let and
work willl begin lmmedliately on the sctual oogstruction

of the William Allen White Memorial Library.

As a result of the delays, numerous changes in plans
were made. In 191, when the Tirst appropriation was made,
the site of the bullding was to have been north of the
gymmasium, and the style of the building sn L shapo.h Some-
time during the intervening time both the location and plans’

for the building were altered.
IV. GROUND BREAKIEG

Preliminary arrangements were fipally completed, and
Monday, Februsry 6, 1950 was set for ground breaking cere-
monies, Events were opened by a dinner at noon in the
Student Unilon building given by FPresident David L. HacFarlane
for the guests here for the occasion. The ceremoniles, at

2:00 P, M, on the site for the new bullding, were marked by

3ne Bulletin, September 9, 1941.
hLibrarx School Newsletter, May, 1941,
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Governor Frank Carlson lifting the first shovel of earth,
followed by Fred Harris, chairman of the State Board of
Regents, and other dignitaries present for the occcasion,
There were brief speeches by Governor Carlson, Mr. Harrls,
R, A, Clymer, editor of The ElDorsdo Times, and Burion ¥,
HMarvin, dean of the William Allen White Schocl of Journalism
at the University of Kansas.>

V. CORNERSTONE LAID

On Octobsr 30, 1950, homecoming week-end on the Kansas
State Teachers College of Emporia camrus, the cornerstone
for the Williem &Allen White Memorilsl Library was laild.
Governor Carlson delivered the address and Presildent David L.
MgcFarlane “read from the seme Bible whieh President Lyman B,
Kellogzg ussd vhen the State Normel School was opened at
Emporia in 1865,"0
' The new bullding wes completed, ready for inspection
by the state architect on November 20, 1951. According to a
statement in the Fresident's Free Press, "If the building is

accepted, moving can begin at once, "'

5The Bulletin, Februsry 3, 195C.
6L1brarx School Newsletter, December, 1950,

Tpresident's Free Press, November 19, 1955, ». 3.
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From reports of varlous members of the staff who
partieipated, the problems of moving were many. However,
the final realization of the o0ld hopes and the anticipstion
of ocecupyingz the new gquarters made the hardships seem
triviel, : -

The reserve readinz room was the first to be opened

for use, according %o The Emporis Gaszette for January 1,

1952, Also on that date the students =nd faculty "made
proview inspecticns of portions™ of the new ’ouildlng.8

VI. THE BUILDING DEDICATED

The formal dedication ceremories, to whieh the
general publlc wes invited, were schaduled for Aprll 21st
and 224, 1952, 4 dioner in the Student Union Ballroom on
the campus on Monday evening, April 21, was the opening
event,? The speaker at the dinner was Hodding Certer, a
newspaper editor and friend of Mr, White, who had received
the Pulitzer prize for his editorials in 1946. On Tuesday
morning in Albert Taylor Hall, the auditorium on the campus
of EKansas State Teachers College, Enporia; there were two
speakers. Dr, Ordway Tead of New York City, suthor, educator,
chairman of the Board of Higher Edueation, and director of

gghg Emporia Gazette, Jamuary 1, 1952.
9Ibid., April 21, 1952,
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Harper end Brothers Fublishing Company, spoke om "Our Col-
legesa: Necessities or Luxuriest™; and Dr. G. Lester
Andersen, Dean of Administration at the Urniversity of
Buffalo, author of several articles on education, delivered

an address titled "State Teachers®' Colleges in Higher
Education.”

The dedication message was given on Tuesday afternoon
by the Hon, Edward F. Arn, Governor of Kansas, in the new

building, after whieh a tea and reception was held as the

last session of the coremonies.lo

The occasion was & memorable one, especially sc to
those who had worked and welted many yesrs for fulfiliment
of theilr dream.

A booklet titled "A Memorial to & Great American, ™
published et the time of the dedicetlon describss the bulld-

ings

The William Allen White Memorial Library 1s a twe
and cne-half story, red brick structure with cver-azll
dimensions of 138 ﬁy 12 feet., The seating capacity
of the building accommodates 700 persons and the book
spece provides for over 300,000 volumes,

On the basement floor, aprroximately five feet below
the grade level, are the reserved book reading room,
the elementary achool department library, a room for
claases in children's literature, a publie typing ro
and e receliving and packaging room. The seating capacity
of the reserved book room is 208 persons.

19;gg Bulletin, Special Issue, April 18, 1952.
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The main floor conslsts of the main reading room, the
Williem Allen White Memorial Recreational Reading Lounge,
the library staff offices, and the main circulation desk
with the card catalog near by. The main reading room
has shelving capacity for I, 000 bound periodicals and
reference works, The Memorial Lounge, equipped with a
fireplsce and living-room furniture, displays books by
and about Mr, White,

On the mezzanine floor are the library school reading
and study room, a classroom for library school students,
rooms for undergraduste study groups, the audio-visual
servlices area, and a listening room where students play
phonograph records,

Adjacent to the book stack on the fourth floor are
conforongt and study rooms for graduate students and
faculty.

In the president's report to the governor and the
Board of Trustees, with the Biennlal Report for the two years
ending June 30, 1952 is this paragraphs

The William Allen White Memorial Library was completed
during the period of this report, This library houses
the college library, an audlo-visusl aids center, offices
of our Graduate Division, snd the School of Library
Selence. It is en excellent library building and should
serve the College well for the next half century or

longer.l2

llgansas State Teachers College, Emporia, "A Memorial
to a Great American," inside rront cover,

1234ennial Report, Jume 30, 1952, p. 6.




CHAPTER V
COLLECTIONS
I. BOCK COLLECTION

on July 1, 1%30, the book collection of Kellogg
Library totaled 69,551 volumess The books In the general
collection, the reference collection; the elementary school
eollection, the Roosevelt High School ccllection, and the
Library School collection made up this aggregate number.
There were other materials such as periodicals, both bound
and unboundy pamphlets; c¢lippingsy mounted pletures: the
"Sormaliana" collsction; and govermment publications includ-
ing both state and federal documents, the Fansas colleetion
and the Documents collection.? These, except for the pleture
collection, weore maintained, used and housed as a part of
the Reference Department. The plecture collection, com-
prised of spproximately 50,000 earafully selected, mounted
and classified items, was housed im vertical filing cabinets
in the Children's Dopartment.

These different ccllections all grew, placing more
and more strain on the storage space in the already crowded

lpccession Record, Kellogg Librery, 1930.
23tophens, op. eit., pps L4=5.
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Eellogg building. In 1932, the Bulletin listed some general
figures of the size of the eollection: 66,000 classified
end ecataloged volumes, 5,400 bound and cataloged pamphlets
and 21,500 unbound classified pamphlets.3

For some interesting comparisons, in the early spring
of 1952, which was moving time, the eollection figures were
greatly lnereased., At that time the general book collection
totaled epproximately 99,000 books, and by the fall of 1958
there were about 125,416 volumes .4 There was also comparable
growth in the numbers of uncataloged materials such as

periocdlicals, pamphlets, and govermment publications,
II. THE REFERENCE COLLECTION

The materials that are maintained in the Reference
Department are varied. The general reference collection
consists of encyclopedias, both old and new editions,
bibliographies, atlases, gazetteers, indexes snd books con-
taining classifled ltems of information in all subject
areas, Periodlcals and some of the perilodical 1ndexes which
had been in the reference room were transferred to the newly

organized Periodicals Department in the spring of 1959.

3The Bulletin, April 22, 1932.
bcataloz Department Records, Jume, 1959.
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Pamphlets, which are classified according to subject
and placed in pamphlet boxes on shelves in the reference
stacks, sre a constantly used source of information. They
are loaned for short periods of time from the reference desk.

Some of the United Nations publications, largely pame-
phlets, are shelved separately at the weat end of the
reference reading room. Other selected items from the
United Nations publications sre a part of the general or
reference collection.

The White Library maintains a growing collection of
microfilsm and similar meterisl. Much of the material obtained
from inter-library loan is on microfilm or microprint. The
microfilm files include The New York Times since Jsnuary,
1952, The Topeks Daily Capitel since Jamuary, 1958, and The
Buporia Gazette since January, 1959, as well as some materials
pertaining $o the early history of the college are stored in
eteel vertical filing csbinets ot the Reference Desks These
are to be used only in the library. There are e Recordak
Film Reader, a Readex Hicroprint Reader and a Remington-Rand
Microfilm Reader on tables near the Reference Desk, for the
use of the public.

III. GOVEREMENT DOCUMENTS

Depository. As 1s stated elsewhere in this study,
the william Allen White Library has been a depository for
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government publications on a selective basis since 1909.
This means that the library is one to which coples of the
federal govermment publications are sent according to those
selected, The selections are made from a master list of the
current governmment publications, Minutes of all legislative
sessions, publieatlions of the Cfflce of Education and other
documents are regulsrly recelved. Although these are not
loaned, they may be used by anyone in the library. There

1s slso the Kansas Collection, which 1s composed of the
official publications of the State of Kanses. These state
government publications are avallable for use by anyone, and
as 18 the case with documents from the federal govermment,

must be used ir the reference department.

IV. SPECIAL CCLLECTIONS

Normallans. The Normsliana Collection, a name which
oricinated from the fact that in the earlier years this school
was called the Kansass State Normal School, is a collection
of various and many materials particularly associated with
the history of the eollege. There are clippings, catalogs,
school annuals, bound files of The Bulletin, the official

school publicatlon; copies of publications of various

SSeventesnth Blermial Report of the Board of Regents,
1909-10.
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departments of the school, and anything concerned with the
ovents and business of the schools Items in this collection
are used within the reference romm, and are not loaned as
the matericls are irreplaceable. These items are listed in
the bibliography by Barbara Eyden, msentioned elsewhere in
this ltndy.6

At the time of the building of the Williem Allemn
White Library building, a serapbook of clippings about the
new library was compiled. This 1s in = notebook called
"serapbook” and has been kept in e steel file with the
Normelisna collection.? I% provides an account of the prog-
ress and svents connected with the construction of the new
library from the submission of the plsns for bids until the
building was actually in use.

The Curriculum Librery. MNaterials for a Curriculum
Library were collected during the summer of 1954, and were

housed in a separate room adjacent to the Roosevelt !Iish
School Library. This collection is made up of books of
special interest to teachers in the primary through high
school grades. They are assembled to glve an overview of
avallable textboock-type materials, instructional and

Gpyden, op. cit.

TInterview between the writer and Ada Hodgson
Reference Librarian, at Emporie, Eensas, Jume 29, 1959.
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educational pamphlets and guide books for courses of study

from other publie schools and state departments of educa-
tion.8 On June 1, 1959 there were 1,311 pemphlets in 50
sub ject areas and over 300 currieculum guides. Altogethser
there were L, 1152 items in this eollection,?

At the close of the 1959 spring semester this collec-
tion was moved to the shelves in the ground floor reading

room in the William Allen White Library.

North Central Association Materials Genter. On

shelves a2t the west end of the Reference Room is & collec~
tion of books selected from the bibliography ¢f the North
Central Assoclation. These books as well as copies of the
bibliograephy have been secured for distribution to members
of the college faculty., Books in this collection may be
self-charged; others which ere a part of the genersl collec-
tion and are housed in the library stacks may be secured at
the eirculation desk, This service was instituted in

Jarmary, 1953,1°

8interview between the writer and Ruth Hanson, Director
of School Libraries 2t Emporia, Kansas, July b, 1959.

Report to Benjemin B, Richards, Librarien, by Ruth
Hanson, Direector of School Libraries, June : 1959.

10rm, Fresident's Free Press, January 19, 1953.
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Williasm Allen White Collection. Displayed in the

eases both in the lobby and the Browsing Room are mamu-
seripts, photographs and other items from the collectlons
of Willlsm Allen White., These, and many of the books {rom
Mr., White's library were given to the library by Mr. and
Mrs, Willlam Lindsay White, before the dedicatory cere-
monies, Those whilch attracted special attention from
visitors were two original menuseripts: the "Mary White"
editorial end The Court of Boyville, one of Mr, White's

books.ll This collection 1s classified and housed in srecial
cases in a locked room. Permission for its use 1s cbtained
from the librarien. A copy of each of Willlem Allen Whitets
books forms another part of the White collection, These

are shelved sepsratsly, and as time permite, they are being

cataloged for & specisl collection,
V. SCHOOL LIBRARIES COLLECTIONS

Children's Department., The Mary White Room serves
children from kindergarten through the sixth grade. The
supervisors and student teachers of these grades use the
library for enrlehing their curriculum and for providing

materials such as pletures, pamphlets and magazines to

llLibrary School Newsletter, Mey, 1952,
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supplement their curricular plans, There are approximetely

2000 books in this collection.lz

Roosevelt High School Library. This collection of
about 8000 books is housed on the second floor of the
Roosevelt High School bullding on the campus, It serves
the students from seventh grade through senior high school,
end, as 1s the case with the children's collection, the

supervisors and student teachers as uroll.l3
VI. LIBRARY SCIENCE COLLECTION

A collection of over 2000 selected book:,lh parphlets
and psriodicals especially written or published from & pro-
fessional point of view is maintained in the stacks of the
library sechool laboratory room on the second flocr of the
William Allen White Library. These are used as part of the
instructionel materials in the varicus courses of training

in the library science department.

121nterview botween the writer and Ruth Hanson, op.
eit,

131bia.

1h1ntorviow between the writer and Irene M. Hansen,

Assistant Frofessor of Library Science, 1n Emporia, Kansas
July 11, 1959.



VIiI. AUDIO-VISUAL COLLECTION

The audlc-viszual collection, which in the spring of
the 1958-1959 school year numbered approximately 600 films,
00-500 recordings, and several thousand fllnstrips,ls is
the cutgrowth of a very small begimning, 1In the fell of 194
the Extension Division added a pew department of audio-
visual alds with the purchase of eighty-two I‘il.:rm,,l6 to
which additions bave been made In each succeeding year.

Since September, 1955 this department has been housed
on the second floor of the William Allem White Library
bpuilding.

15Interview between the writer and Dr. Rolland A,
Alterman, FProfessor of Education and Director of Audio-
Visual Services, at BEmporia, Kanses, July 2, 1959.

1611brary School Newsletter, December, 19LL.




CHAPTER VI
DEPARTMENTS AND SERVICES

The departments in 1930, according to the staff
members listed in the previous study, were Circulation,
Reference, Children's Department, Order, Extension end
Catalog.t Tn 1958 there were listed Supervisor of School
Libraries, Reference, Circulation, Catalog, Periodical and
mu:om!.c:on,.2 also Acquisitions.

Each of these depertments hes grown and expanded,
both as to size of collections and the services extended.

The White Library hss always relied on student
assistants for much of the clerical work and services that
can be performed by non-professional persconnel. In recent
years, these students were, in so far as possible, chosen
from the students of the library scheol, thus giving them
an opportunity to receive practical experience aa part of
their training. The cost of student or "time help™ was
$6,530.59 in 1930-1931,2 end in 1958-1959 this smount had
increased to a total of 515,91;7.71.11'

lstephens, op. cit., p. 56.

2President's Free Press, September 6, 1958.
3Biennial Report, June 30, 1932.

brecords, William Allen White Library.
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I. THE CIRCULATION DEPARTMENT

The Circuiation Department is responsible for the
loaning of books in the general collection., These include
filetion and foreign language books, 28 well as books in all
subjects which comprise the main collsetion of the typleal
college library. Clsrical dutiss necessary in checking
books, Tilling cards and sending overdue notlces are done
largely by student assistants, The stacks are kept in order
by student assistents who also {11l the reguests of students,
faculty and other patrons for specilic books.

Since the move Intec the White bullding the department
is responsible for the selection of the books for the Browsing
Room. These are books of specisl value in stimulating read-
ing.

The work in this department is performsd under the
directlon of one professional librarianwith a corps of stu-
dent assistants.

II. THE REPFERENCE DEPARTMENT

The Reference Department 1s one of the important
centers of 2 library, It 1s in the nutoriois of this
collectlion that apeeific information may be located., The
reference materials de not cilrculate and ars selscted to

cover as many aress cf knewledge as possible,
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In the William Allen White Library, as in Kellogg
Library, the Reference Department has included the pamphlets,
the periodicals and the Government Documents collectlons.

The services in the department are dispensed under the
direction of one professional librasrian, with the aid of

student sssistants.
III, THE ACQUISITIONS DEPARTMENT

The Acquisitions Department, so called since the fall
of 1957, is responsible for the specialised processes neces~
sary in ordering and recelving 211 materials. Books,
pamphlets, periodicals and any other items that go inte any
of the library ccllections sre processed by this office,
Requests for new matsrials are sent to this office where
the necessary bdibliocgraphical checking which 1s o necesmary
prelude to the ordering of materilals is done., The orders
are sent, and the records such as those of books on order,
books reeceived but not rrocessed, and othsrs pertaining to
the business affalrs of ordering and recelving materials are
maintained in this coffice,.

IV. THE CATALCG DEPARTMENT

The Catalog Department 1s responsible for the classi-
fleaticn and eataloging of the books, and the mechanical

procedures necessary to prepare materials for the library
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shelves, Cataloging and classifying, simple enough terms
in themselves, is a time consuming process, and requires
technical skill, judgment and professional "know-how." It
often entalls searching in varicus bibliographical and
subject reference sourcss,
_ The Catalogz Department processed an average of 250 to
300 books a month during the fall months of 1958, Four or
five thousand books sre received during the school yoar.s
These figures do not include books for extension services,
departmental collections, end other meterials which although
not completely cataloged reguire some processing in this
department. One preofessional cataloger, with the aid of
several student assistants, is responsible for all the

routines.
V. THE SCHOOL LIBRARIES DEPARTMENT

The School Libraries Department is made up of two
collectlons, The Childrent's Department Collection, housed
in the Mary White Room of the William Allen White Library,
and the Roosevelt High School ecollection maintained in the
Roosevelt High Sehool buillding., This department 1s directed
by a professional librarian with one proressional assistant

at Roosevelt High School.

5Catalog Department Records, June, 1959.
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The Children's Department has at various times in the
development of the school been called the Elementary School
Department and Laboratory Sechool Department,

The Mary White Room was dedicated to the memory of
the daughter of Mr, and Mrs., William Allen White on October 16,
1958. It is the room on the southwest corner of the basement

floor of the White Library building.6

The Willlam Allen White Chilidren's Pook Award Program.
During the dedlcation ceremonies for the new Wllliam Allen

White Library bullding in April, 1952, the library sponsored
a new reading program called "The Willlam Allen Yhite Chil-
dren's Book Award Frogram."

This program 1s dasigned for boys and girls in grades
four through nine. At least two books from a sslected 1list
are read during the school year, after whilch the children
vote, in Marech, for the book they like hest. These votes
are tallied end the winner 1s ammounced to all the schools
irn April, before school is out. The books on the reading
list are selected by & committee whose members are repre=~
sentatives of professionsl =nd educational organizations in
Kansas, The books selected are those whioh.;nre published

two years before the year in whileh the award is to be given.

blaterview betwesn the writer end Ruth Hanson, July 6,
1959.
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They are selected to ineclude the best books published during
those years, and to sppeal tc a wide range of reading
interests, |

The award, = mcdal designed by Eldon Tefft, of the
School of Fine Arts, University of Kansas, is awarded the
winning author each antumn et o meeting of an educational or
professicnal organiaation.a

This 15 the first such progrem where the children
themnalves chcose the winmers, 4 child may vote after read-
ing only two boocks or the list, It 1= slsc suggested that
in some cases the teacher may resd slocud to the whole elass,
The mein object 1= to interest chilérern in reading more and
better bocks,

Perticipation in this progrem has shown gratifying

results, and sevsral other statss have since set up similay

prograna.9

T"Fhe William Allen White Children's Bock Award Pro-
gram," Information Center, White Library, Kensas State
Teachers College, ilporia (Ht-oographod)

8uPhe Willlam Allen White Children's Book Award,"
The William Allen White Library, Kansas State Teachers Gol-
lege, Emporia. (Brochure)

9¢The Williem Allen White Childrsn's Book Award
Program,” op. cit.



VI. PERIODICALS-~-EXTENSION DEFPARTMENT

The Perlodicals Department, recently organized, is in
charge of the organization and use of the pericdicals,
journals =nd newspapers. FKeeping records of issues received
and data pertaining tc the bound ecoples, end housing of all
the periodiecals are part of the department's duties. 1In
addition, the mall loan service of the William Allex White
Library is done by thls department.

The mail-]lcan service consists of sending books and
other materials, loaned to extenslon snd correspondence
study students not on the campus, and securing malterials
from other libraries for any students to use in ressarch
studies, With the inersasing numbers of students doing
research for graduate sehool requirements, this is an
important serviece.

For the year ending Jume 30, 1959, 270 ltems were
borrowed from other libraries, 109 individual requests could
not be filled, 62 loens were made to other libraries, 5
requests from other libraries were not filled, U417 extension
loans of pamphlets &nd books were made, and 18 1tems on
nicrofilm were purchased by the library in iiau of inter-

library loen, 10

: 10: eriodicals--Extension Department report, June 30,
1959.
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These figures do not show the hours spent in ascertain-
ing complete bibliographical data for each request and the
extra correspondence necessary for the requests not filled.
Each of these may represent several attempts to find the
material from another source,

Beginning in the spring of the 1958-1959 school year
this department is also responsible for the unbound periocdi-
oal-.ll It is staffed by one professional librarian who has

the assistance of some students,

VIII. THE AUDIO-VISUAL DEPARTMENT

The Audio-Visual Department was originally a part of
the Extension Department., It was started in the fall of
19l with = collection of eighty-two films.l2 It now has a
collection of films and Tilmstrips, recordings of =11 varie-
tles, projectors, and other visual teaching alds, These are
loaned to schools for classroom use, Beginning in 1955,
the Audio-Visual Department assumed responsibility for

audio=visual courses which are taught on the campus,

llinterview between the writer and Mildred Myers,
Pe;iodicals-xxtension Librarian, at Emporia, Kansas, July 3,
1959.

12L1brnrz School Newsletter, December, 194l




CHAPTER VII

PERSONNEL

No library can give proper services without people %o
perform them. The library on the campus at Kansas State
Teachers College, Emporia, has always malntained high stand-
ards in the selection of its staff mewbers. Only prcfessionally
treained librarians have besn employed.

The librarisns on the staff have always been interested
in partieipating in professional and other organizations,
both on a state and national level. They have belongasd %o
and contributed services to the Ameriecan Library Association,
The Kansas Library Assoclation, The EKansas Assoclation of
Schocl Librarians, The American Association of University
Women, and other natlonal educational organizations. They
are included in varlious biographical lists of persons in
library and educational fields.

I. LIBRARIANS

During the years covered by this study there were two
head librariens, Mr. Carrol P. Basber, who served from 1927
until his retirement as head librarian in 1950, and his final
retirement in 1956,1 and Dr. Orville L. Baton, who came in

1t ennial Repord, June 30, 1956,
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1950 a8 eollege librarian and head of the Library Scilence
department.

Mr, Carrcl P. Baber. Mr, Baber came to Emporia
because "a new library is just around the corner,"2 His
master's thesis, written when he attended the University of
Illinois in 1927, wes a study of architectural arrangements
of college libraries, It was an important study in the
library fleld, had been loaned tc leading university
libraries, and references to it were found in some foreign
publications,? He started to work on plans for the new
building soon after he arrived in Emporia, This mast often
have seemed discouraging when realization was so slow to
come, Mr, Baber was Iinterested in the best services possible
to the students and faculty, giving continual study to the
problems of day to day library service, maintaining a keen
interest always in the library school and the students, and
a personal interest in each member of the library staff.

He retired as head librarian in 1950, but remained as
Librarian Emeritus until his final retirement in 1955.

During this time he performed the duties of Order Librarian.u

%Lih!&!l School Newsletter, December, 1949.

T e———

3The Bulletin, Wovember 17, 1936.
hOQERus Reporter, April, 1952,
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Dr. Orville L. Saton. Dr. Orville L, Eaton jolned
the staff of Emporis State Teachers College, Emporia, in
September, 1950, as College Librarien end head of the Depzrt-
ment of Library Science. He came from the University of

Eansas Glty.s He was awarded the Bachelor of Science degree
and the Master of Science degree from Pittsburg State
Teachers College, Pittsburg, Kansas in 1938 and 1940 respec-
tively, and in 1946 was granted the Doctor of Fhilosophy
degree by the University of Kansas, In addition he held
the Bachelor of Library Science from the University of
Chicago, awarded in 19&8.6

From September, 1953 to February, 1958 he was also
chairman of the Graduate Divisicn of the college, He also
served on the Master Teacher Awards committee from the date
of its establishment until his resignation from the sechool
staff in August, 1958.7

He supervised the final finishing and furnishing of
the new Willlam Allen White Library buillding, end the move
from the Kellogg bullding into the new one in the spring of

1952,

5Ibid.
ﬁggg Emporis Gagette, November 3, 1956.

TLetter to the writer from Dr, Orville L. Eaton,
Librarian, resigned, dated June 29, 1959,
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It wes under his direction that the library science

program was instituted as a combined ma jor for the Masteris

degrees program in 1951,8 and as & full major with a fifth

year curriculum in library secience in 1953.9 The curriculum

was planned to make it possible for those who could attend

only in summer sessions to obtain a Master's degroe.lo
Dr, Eaton states, "I've aslways believed that the move

of the collections to the William Allen White Library, the

organigation of the graduate program in the Department of

Librery Science, and the establishment of the William Allen

White Children's Book Award were the outstanding develop-

ments in the library during the pericd of my administraetion, "1l

Dr, Eaton resigned at the ¢lose of the summer, 1958, to go

to Centrel Mlchigan University at Mt. Fleasant, Michigan,

and for the first semester of the 1958-1959 school year the

library and library school were without a director. Miss

Irene Hansen, of the lilbrary school faculty, was acting head

of the llbrery school during that period, and Miss Gertrude

Lemon assumed the responsibilities of head librarian,

S3ulletin of Information, August, 1951.
91bid., July, 1953.
IOL;brag; School Review, January, 195G.

llietter to the writer from Dr, Orville L. Eaton, op.
cit., June 2G, 1659,
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Mr, Benjamin B. Richards. On October 22, 1958 at 2
school convoecation, President John E, King announced the
appointment of ¥r. Benmjamin B, Richards as Librarian and
Professor of Library Science at Kanses State Teachers
College, Emporia,l2
Mr. Richards assumed his duties on January 1, 1959,
He came from Knox College, Galesburg, Illincls, where he hsad
been librarisn since 1946. He holds a Bachelor of Arts
degree (1939) from Iowa State Teachers College, = Bachelor
of Science 1n Library Science degree (1941) from Western
Reserve, and a Master of Arts degree (1951) from Claremont
Callfornia Graduate School. He is completing work on his
tor of Fhilosophy degree from the Graduate Librery School
of the Tniversity of Chicago.13

II, LIBRARY STAFF, 1930

In 1930, at the close of the years covered in the
previous study of the hlstory of Kellogz Library, ¥Mr, Baber's
staff was listed as including: Miss Maud Shore, heesd of the
Circulatlon Department; Miss FPaye Huffman, head of the Chil-
dren's Department; Miss Harriett Elcock, Order Librarien;

12The Bulletin, October 23, 1958,

13Interview between the writer and Mr. Benjamin B.
Richards, Librarian in Emporia, Kansas, June 30, 1959.
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Miss Caroline Newmen, Extension Librarian; Miss Mildred

Palmer, head of the Cetalog Department; and Miss Ada Hodgson,
Referencs Librarinn.lu

Of these, Miss Adea Hodgson wes the only one still a
member of the staff in 1958,

Maud Shore. Maud Shore retired at the close of the
sumer session of 1950 after forty-three years of service
on the library staff. She was listed in the school catalogs
as Circulation Librarien, 1908-1950,1>

From the fall of 1933, when the reservs collsction was
moved across the campus into the ammex on the rirst f{loor
of the building originally built for use &3 a school cafe-
terla, Misas Shore supervised the services from both buildings,
Plenning student work schedulss, snd maintaining necessary
routines required speclal plamming. During her tenure she
16

also taught some library sclence courses,

Faye Huffman. Faye Huffman, heed of the Children's
Department and Supervisor of School Libraries, retired in

4stephens, op. cit., p. 56.
15L1brar1 School Newsletter, December, 1950.

oLetter to the writer from Maud Shore, Circulation
Librarien, retired, dated June 25, 1959.
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July, 1953, after heving been on the staff since September,
1913.17 She was succeeded by Miss Ruth Hanson.

Miss Huffman says that she began her work in the
library a2t the cireulaticn desk, but was socn transferred to
the Elementary School Department. Cataloging the books for
that department and teaching courses in Children's Litera-
ture were zome of her earlier responsibilities, She held a
Bachelor of Selence degree (1924) and & Master of Science
degree (1933) both from Kansas State Teachers College,
Emporia,

She participated in nationel and state professiomsal
organizations, and wes active aa 2 sponsor of the Umega
Literary Seclety, a women's organization on the campus. In
that capecity, she helped establish the first scholarship

loan fund given by 2 women's organization in 1928.18

Harriett Elcogk. Begimning in 1915, Harriett Elcock
began a forty-one year tenure as a member of the library
stalf, She served as Assistant in Circulation and waas Head
of the Shelf Department before becoming Order Librarian in
1925, & position she held until 195C when she became

17Biennisl Report, Jumne 30, 1954.

181etter to the writer from Faye Huffman, Supervisor
of School Librariss, retired, dated July 6, 1959.
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Extension Librerian.l? She retired July 1, 1957.2°
In addition to the professional organilzations, Mlss

Elcock belonged to Kapra Delta P1 and Delta Keppa Gamma,
and was active in the Emporis group of Business and Pro-
fessionsl Women. She served several of the organizationa teo
which she belonged in varlous elective offices, and sponsored
Alice Freeman Palmer, a literary soclety on the Emporia

State eampus.ZI

III. LIBRARY STAFF, 1958

In September, 1958, the library staff included; Miss
Gertrude Lemon, Circulation Librarian; Miss Ada E. Hodgson,
Reference Librarian; Mrs. Mildred Myers, Feriodicals and
Extenslon Librarian; Miss Esther Vander Velde, Catalog
Librarian; and Miss Ruth Hanson, Supervisor of School
Libraries,22 Dr, Ralph Fritzs, who had taken charge of
acqulsitions during the summer remsined on the staff am

Acquisitions Librarian, >3

19L1brery School Newsletter, December, 1950,
20p1brary School Review, December, 1957,

?lretter to the writer from Harrlett Elcock, Order
Librarian, retired, deted July 13, 1959.

22 .es1dent's Froe Eress, September 6, 1958.

23p1brery School Review, January, 1959.
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Ada Hodgson. Ada Hodgson has been a member of the
library staff at Emporla State since September, 1929. She
holds a Bachelor of Arts degree Trom Cormell College at
Mt, Vernmon, Iowa (1927) and a Bachelor of Science in Library
Science degree from the University of Illinois (1929).

She has always been called Reference Librarisn, but
her assignments have included the responsibility for the
periodicals and government documents collections.

Miss Hodgson wes elected to Phi Beta Kappa whille she
was in school, and in 1950 was elected to Beta Phi Mu, en

honorary library fraternity for professional librarianl.ah

Esther Vander Velde. Esther Vander Velde became
cataloger in April, 194k, after Frances Hemman resigned, She
holds 2 Bachelor of Arts degree from the College of Emporia
(1939) and & Library Certificate grented by Kansas State
Teachers College, Emporiz in 1940, where she has also done
some graduete work in soeclal science., She was assistant
cataloger at Wichita University during the years 1940-1942,
In addition to membership in the professionsl organizations
she belongs to Kappa Delta PL1 and Pi Gamma Mu, 2 natlional
social sclence honorary fraternity.zs -

ignterview betwesn the writer and Ada Hodgsom, op.
eit.

aslntorviow between the writser and Esther Vander
Velde, Catalog Librarien in Emporia, Kansas, June 29, 1959.
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Gertrude Lemon. On October 13, 1947, Gertrude Lemon
joined the staff of the library at Emporla State as Extension
Librarian replacing Alma Bonnott.' She had been Librarisn at
the Parsons Publie Library, Farscns, Kansas, She held a
Bachelor of Selsnce in Education degree (1939) and was
ewarded a Master of Sclence degree from Kansas State Teachers
College, Emporia in 1954. FPrior tc her experience at Parsons
she had been Circulation Department Assistant in the Wichita
Publie Library, Wichita, Kansas. 1In September, 1950, she
became Circulation Librarien at Kellogg Librery.

Aside Trom her participetion in professional organiza-
tions Miss Lemon was a group discussion leader for the Great
Books program for the year 1958-1959.26

Ruth Hanson. Ruth Hanson Jecirned the staff of the
William Allen White Library in the fell of 1953 as Super-

visor, School Libreries, She came from Winfleld, Kansas
where she hed been with the Winfield High School Library.

She had elso taught library secience courses during the summer
sessions of 1951-1953 at Wichita University. She holds a
Bachelor of Sclence in Commerce degree from Kansas State
Teachers College, Emporis (1930) and a Ha-t;r of Secience in

26Intorview between the writer and Gertrude Lemon,
Circulation Librarian in Emporia, Kansas, June 2i, 1959.
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Library Science degree from Western Reserve in 1950. 3She
has done graduate work at Duke University, Durham, North
Carolina,

In addition to supervising the Roosevelt High School

Library and the Children's Library, Miss Hanson is & member
of the Willlam Allen White Children's Book Award committes,

She hes been active in many state and nstionsl pro-
fessional organizations, She is a past-president of Kansas
Associstion of School Librarians, 1952-1953, and edited
thelr newsletters for a period of three years, She 1is
President of Kansas Library Assocciation for the year 1559-
1960. During the year 1958-1959 she became s member of the
Wewbery Caldecott Award committese,

The Newbery awerd is presented to the author of the
most distinguished children's book of the year., The Caldecott
award is given for the best illustrations in a children's

book during the eurrent year.27

¥illdred Myers (lrs, John E,) became Feriodicals-

Extension Librarian in July, 1956, after the retirement of
Harriett Elcock. She attended William Jewell College,
Liberty, Mlssourl, where she was awarded the Bachelor of

Arts degree and served as Assistant Librarian from September,

2TInterview bstween the writer and Ruth Hanson, op.
cit.
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1952 to August, 1954. She wes awarded a Master of Science
degree with a major in Library Science from Kansas State
Teachers College, Hmporia, in May, 1957.

In addition to participation in the professicnal
organizations, she was elected secretary-treasurer of the
FPaculty Women's Council at Kanses State Teachers College,
Emporis for the year 1959-1960,28

Semira 3, Ice (Mrs. W, R.), librarian at Roosevelt

High School Library since September, 1957, holds 2 Bachelor
of Science in Education degree (1955) and a Master of
Science (1956) from Kansas State Teachers College, Emporia.
She was a substitute teacher 1n English et Emporias High
School, Emporis, Kensas, during the 1956-1957 schocl year,29

IV. LIBRARY SCHOOL FACULTY

The two head librarians, in addition to administering
the 1library itsslf, were members of the library school
faculty. Both Mr, Baber and Dr, Baton acted in the capacity
of the director of the library school, and Dr, Eaton taught

various classes.

2BIntorview between ths writer and Mildred Myers,
_gg.ot-

29Interview between the writer and Semira S, Ice,
Librarian at Roosevelt High Sechool in Emporia, Kanses,
July 2 1959.
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In 1930 Mrs, Elsle Howard Pine and Miss Beatrice
Holt were appointed assistant professors of library science, >0

Mrs. Pine, who jolned the library school faculty in
1922, retired in 1949 from full teaching participation, but
remeined very actlve as an interested advisor. She holds a
Bachelor of Arts degree from the University of Wisconsin,
1s a graduate of the Unlversity of Wisconsin Library School,
and was awarded a Master of Arts degree from Radcollffe
College, Cambridge, Massachusetts., She has done graduate
study at the Graduate School of Library Seience at the Uni-
versity of Chicago,

She has taught at the University of Illinois, Loulsi-
anga State University and Cur Lady of the Lake College at
San Antonlo, Texas,31

Almost every library newsletter or account of asectivi-
ties about the library includes mention of her name connected
with scme activity. To quote a Newsletter from the Department
of Library Sclience in December, 1948:

¥rs, Pine 1s actlve in many elubs and organizations

of local, state and natlonal importance., She is in
demand as a book reviewer, and finds time to serve on

30stephens, op. cit., p. Sh.

311nterview between the writer and Mrs, Elsie Howard
Pine, Assistant Professor of Library Secience, retired, in
Emporia, Kansas, July 1, 1959,
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nunerous committees dealing wigs educational, cul-
tural, and religlous problems.

At the annual state conference of the Kansas Library
Association, held in Hutchinson, Kensas, October 12, 1951,
¥rs, Pine was elected to honorary membership, one of the
first two such honors bestcowed by this organization. For
Mrs, Pine, 1t was in recognition of "her unwavering devotion
to the higher ideals of library service,"33 Mrs. Fine is
a member at large of the selection committee for the Willipn
Allen White Children's Book Award committes.3lt

In 1959, Mrs. Pine 1s still called upon for advice
and information by everyone concerned with the library.

Miss Beatrice Holt, Assistant Professor Library.
Scilence in 1930, beceme a member of the library school faculty
in 1922, She held at that time a Bachelor of Science degres
from Ottawa University, Ottaws, Kansas (1918), had attended
Worthwestern University and was awarded the Bachelor of
Seience in Library Science degree by the Universilty of
Illineois in 1927. During her tenure at Kansas State Teachera

College, Emporia, she completed the requirements for a

3?L;pranz Schoel Newsletter, December, 1948.

3presidentts Free Press, December 3, 1951.

341nterview between the writer and Mrs, Pine, July 1,.
1959.
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Master of Arts degree which was granted in 1932, She resigned
July 31, 1935 to go to Denver University, Denver, Colorado,35
as a member of the faculty of the School of Librarianship.

Miss Holt served several years on the Denver Univer-
slty teaching staff, and more recently has been in library
service in forelgn countries, She was in Seoul, Korea at
the time of the Japanese invasion and is at this time doing
library work in Indla, under a program sponsored by the
United States State Department.30

Mrs. Inez King Cox. In June, 1948, Mrs. Inez King
Cox, who was a visiting lecturer in Library Science during

the summer of 1947, became Assistant Professor in the Depart-
ment of Library Seience. She came from Kansas City, Missouri
where she had been Branch Librarian at Center Community
Librery, a branch of the Kanses City, Missourl Fublic Library.
She was a veluntary member of the Committee on Young Adult
Work whieh coordinated selections of books for the various
collections of thet system,37

Mrs, Cox held a Bachelor of Sclence degree from

Southwestern College, Winfleld, Kansas; a Bachelor of Science

358ulletin of Information, February, 1936.

361ntorview between the wrilter and Esther Vander Velde,
op. cit,
37Interviow between the writer and Mrs, Inez King

Cox, Assistant Professor in Library Science, in Emporia,
Kansas, July 1, 1959.
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in Library Sclence from the Columbia University Graduate
School of ILibrary Sclence.3® In June of 1549, she was
awarded the Master of Arts degree “rom Texas State College
for Women, Denton, Texas.3?

During Cctober and November, 1956, lMrs. Cox repre-
sented the American Library Asscciation as consultant on
library service to children and young people, at the Inter-
national Youth Library in Munish, Germany. She attended
Western Reserve college during the spring semester of 1957
as a2 candidate for a doctoral degree in the field ol library
services to chlldren and young people.

She has often served as spealker or consultant to
workshops or other meetings of the professiocnal organizations
$0o which she belongs. From July L-10, 1959, Mrs. Cox was
Consultant for the Workshop on School Librarianship held at
the University of Denver of which Mrs. Mary Peacock Douglas,
a recognized leader in the library field, was director.uo

Irene M. Hansen. WMiss Irene Hansen came to Emporia In

September, 1947, from Winnetka, Illinois, where she had been
Agslstant Librarien at Wew Trier IHIigh School Llbrary, Her

38L1brar1 School Newsletter, December, 1948.
391p1d., May, 1950.

h'OInterview between the writer and R¥rs, Inez King
Cox, op. cit. : '
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degrees are Bachelor of Arts degree from the University of
Denver (1939), Master of Arts degree from Colorado State
College of Education, Greeley (1942), where she also served
as a Library Intern while studying there, and a Master of
Arts in Library Science from the University of Michigan in
1956.

In addition to contimuous participation in profes-
slonal organizations, she has twiece served om A. L. A.
committees, and is a member of Beta Phl Mu, Kappa Delta P1
and Fil Lambda Thota.hl

Dr. Ralph Fritz. Dr, Fritz became a lacturer in the

Library Science department in June, 1955. He came from
Eutztown, Pennsylvanie, where he had been Director of Library
Education in the State Teachers College from 1945-1955, He
had several yesrs of professional and other teaching experi-
ence, in Iowa, Colorado and Wyoming, At EKensas State Teachers
College, Pittsburg, he taught Tor fifteen years in the Edu-~
cation Department before becoming Head Librarian from 1943~
1945. Aside from membership in professional library
assoclatlions, Dr. Fritz has served on the American Library
Assoclation bullding committee, he is a memb;r of Phi Delta

Wlisbrery School Newsletter., December, 1949.

Interview between the writer and Irene M. Hansen,
Emporia, Kensas, July 15, 1959,
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Kappa, Amsricen Associatlion of Educational Research, is a
past president of Klwanls at Pittaburg, Kansas. Hls name 1s
ineluded in Leaders in Education, the American Scholar and
other selective 1lists of sducstors,
In September, 1957, Dr. Fritz assumed the duties of
Acquisitions Librerian.’2

Dr. Rolland A. Alterman became Professor of Education
and Director of Audlo-Visual Services in September, 1955.
From the time he joined the staff of Kansas State Teachers
College, Emporia in 1949, he had been Assoclate Professor of
Education and Fsychology, PDlrector of Supervised Teachling and
Superintendent of the Laboratory Schools. He holds a
Gaghelor of Selence in Education degree (1942) and a Master
of Science in Education degree (1946) from the Kansas State
Teachers College, Pittsburg., He attended Temple University,
was granted a Doctor of Educatlion degree in 1950 at the
University of Pennsylvania, and has done advanced graduate
study at the University of Minnesota.l3

Dr, Alterman teaches courses in audio-visual methoda
end directs the services of the departmental ccllections of
film, filmstrips end recordings,

ualntorviow betwesn the writer and Dr, Ralph Fritsz,
Acquisitions Librarisn, in Emporia, Kansas, June 25, 1959.

b3pulletin of Information, September, 1955.



CHAPTER VIII
SUMMARY

The purpose of this study was to trace the history of
the William Allen White Library on the campus of Kansas State
Teachers College, Emporia. The years covered began with
1930, which was the completion date of a2 previous study
covering the earlier years of the library's hiatory,l and
continued through the 1958-1959 school year.

The official records and other school publications,
housed in the William Allen White Library, were used to
obtaln reports of events. MNembers of the staff were inter-
viewed, either personally or by malil, for personal

observations.
I. CONCLUSIONS

The compilation of the history of the White Library
has led to some observations and coenclusions. One of the
moat significant of these 1s that while the student body
has more than doubled and the faculty of the college increased
from 1930 to 1958, although the library cervices werse

liarold Henry Stephens, "A Study of the CGrowth and
Development of the Library of Eansas State Teachers College,
Buporie, 1l865-1930" (unpublished Master's thesis, Kansas
State Teachers College, BEmporias, April, 1935).




T1. TROURCEEDATION FHR FIhE I

The Willlam Allen White Library building, which the
librery on the campus at Kansas State Teachers College,
Emporia has occupled since the spring of 1952 1s already

showing signs of crowding. The stack area, with space for

zAccession Record, Kellogg Library, 1930.

3¢atalog Department Records, Willlem Allen White
Library, June 29, 1959.

4aiennial Report, Juns 30, 1930, p. 21.
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extended, the number of professional librarians on the stafl
of the library numbered the same in 1958 as in 1930. The
zeneral book c¢ollection during the same period grew from
69,551 volumes on July 1, 19302 to 125,416 accessioned books
in the fall of 1958,3 again a figure that has almost doubled.
The numbers of materlals for the other collsctions have
expanded In proportion as the result of increased book
budgets of the last few years,

In the spring of 1929, the Board of Regents voted to
permit this schoel to confer master's dogreos.u The estab-
lishment of a graduate program of study, with more departments
participating each ysar, places more stress on the library
facilitles and personnel with the accompanying research
necessary in maintaining sueh a progranm,

II. RECOMMENDATIONS FOR FUTURE STUDY

The Willlam Allen White Library building, which the
library on the campus at Kanszs State Teachers Collegs,
Emporia has occupled since the spring of 1952 1s already
showing signs of crowding. The stack area, with space for

2pccession Record, ¥sllegsz Library, 1930.

3Gatalog Department Records, William Allen White
Library, June 29, 1959.

Y8iernia1 Report, Jume 30, 1930, p. 21.
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about 250,000 701umes,5 8till hes room for expansion, but
bound periodicals take up much of this room and storage ares
will be & major problem in the near Tfuture.

The bound periecdicals and bound newspapers are heavy
to handle and take much shelf room to stors., Some research
a8 to the advisability of preocuring microfilm coples of
these materials would help determine a future program,

The Documents ccllectlons, both the Kansas Collection
and the Deposltory Collection are becoming larger each year,
Some studies of ways and means to make these collections
more usable, perhaps leading toward the organization of a
definite Documents department under the supervision of a
qualified librarian are needed,

Studles of the various aspects of the services of
this library in relation to the faculty, the students and
cther patrons such es: Does the library give adequate
service tc the campus? How could the use of the library and
library materials be made more effective to the different
departments of the eollege? What are the merits and costs
relating to departmentel llbraries for a campus comparable
to this one? Are the services of the library easally
available to the handicapped students on this campus?

5'§1lllam Allen White Library," Kansas State Teachera
College, Emporia (brochure), in Appendix.
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Answers to these questions would bs valuables as a basis of
future planning.

Studles might be mede to determine the adeguacy of
the book collectlon in relation to the school curriculum.

As an example, the fields of sclences are expanding rapidly,
and new material is comstantly being presented. Is the col-
lection in this library keeping pace?

There 1s a need for statlstical research concerning
services and collsctions of the William Allen White Library
in relation to the objectives of the college, and with an
sye to costs of these services. These would be useful when
requests for added staff members are made.

Studies concerning the procedures in the various
departments might be made with the view of making them more
effective, such es: a study of procedures in acguisitions,
cataloging, end the technical processes of this librery with
the goal of simplifying them wherever possible.
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APFENDIX

Librery Personnel--Chronology.

EKansas State Teachers Cellege, Emporia, "Willlam Allen White
Library" (Brochure, no ante).

Eansas State Teachers Collsge, Emporia, Color plate, The
Library Reading Room, K.oliogg Library.




STAFF MEMBERS

1930-1959

(Chronology compiled rrom data in offisisl school bulletins
and perscnal interviews)

Cireulation Depertment
¥pud Shore, 1908-July, 1950
Gertrude Lemon, 1950-
Reference Department
Ads Hodgson, 1929-1959 (retired July 1, 1959)
Order Depertment
Harriett Elcock, 1915-1950
Mr., Garrol P, Baber, 1950-1955
Charles Pugh, 1955-1957 (Deceased)

Dr. Relph Pritz, September, 1957~
(Acquisitions Librarian)

Catalog Department
Mildred Palmer, 1930-1932
Alice M. Norwoed, 1932-July 1, 193hk
Bvelyn Blliott, 1934-1935
Elsis D, Sullens, 1935=-July 31, 1937
Msrisn A. Youngs, June 20, 1938-(probably 1940}
Fronces A. Hemmen, 1940-1944
Esther Vander Velde, 19Ll-
Children's Department
Faye Huffman, 1913-July, 19513
Ruth Hanson, 1953~



Extension Department
Caroline Newman, 1926-1940
Eunice Wolfe, 1940-1943
Alma Bemmett, 1943-1947
Geortrude Lemon, October 13, 1947-September, 1950
darriett Eleock, 1950-1956
Mildred Myers (Mrs,), 1956-
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THE LIBRARY BUILDING

The William Allen White Library is designed to serve
the needs of the faculty and students of an institution of
1500 to 2000 students. Every effort was made tc design a
functional building. The building has a rather conventional
plan of library srrangement; the reading rooms are on the
north to take advantage of natural light; the stacks and
service areas are in the center; and the admipistrative of-
fices are in the south part of the building. From an archi-
tect's point of view, the library is a marked departure from
the Collegiate Gothic library buildings that are foond upon
many college campuses.

The State of Kansas has a bargain in the William Allen
White Library and its equipment. At the time the general
contracts were let, construction costs were at the lowest
point since the end of World %War JII. The State Architect
has estimated that if contracts were lef today the cost
would reach $1,250,000. The library is undoubtedly one of
the most adequate and finest teachers’ college libraries in
the country.

The william Allen White Library bhas four floors and nas
outside dimensions of 142 by 146 feet. The groumd area cov-
ered by the building is approximately 20,000 square feet,
and the cubic contents total about 725, 000 cubic feet. It
is approximately 45 feet from grade level to the highest
section of the building -- or 50 feet from the basesment
floor. The library has six levels of stacks with about
45,000 running feet with shelving, providing a working capa-
city of about 250,000 volumes. The building was located and
built to allow expansion to the west toward Merchant Street.
Each service area -- reading rooms, stacks, and offices --
may be expanded to the west without major chamges inm the
structure of the building. The main reading rooms, the lob-
bies, the stacks, the Memorial Room, and the audio-visual
area are completely air conditioned.
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The reserve reading room, with a capacity of 208, occupies
the area exposed to the north. The reserve circulation desk is
loceted in the lobby in suck a way that supervision of the reading
room and both entrances is possible. Across the lobby from the
reserve circulation desk are located @ student locker room, the
transformer room, the staff room, and a public typing room. The
elementary school library occupies the southwest corner of the
ground floor. A classroom (Room #19) for children’s literature
classes is across the lobby from the elementary school library.
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The first floor is the center of the library’s various activ-
ities. The main reference room, the reference office and desk,
the circulation office and delivery desk, the main lobby, the card
catalog, the White Memorial Room, and the offices of most of the
library staff are on the first floor. The main reference room
seats 1982 and provides space for current periodicals and news-

papers, as well as the reference collection. The Memorial Room
serves as a lounge and reading room and for display of the noted
journalist’'s library materials. The library administrative of-

fices, the cataloging department office, and the acquisitions-
extension office are in the south part of the first floor.
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SECOND FLOOK PLAN

The library school, which is accredited by the American Li-
brary Association, is located on this floor. The library school
area is composed of a large classroom, 45 by 54 feet, a typing and
locker room, faculty offices, and a second classroom. The audio-
visual department and conference rooms for undergraduate students
occupy the rest of this floor. The audio-visual department is es-
pecially well equipped for an institution the size of Emporia
State. It includes a projection room for general use and for
audio-visual education classes; a storage and service area for re-
cords, films, film strips and microfilms; and a listening room
where students may listen to records individually or im groups.
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The third floor was planned to serve the needs of the Gradu-

ate Division and specialized groups coming to the campus. The
Graduate Division office and general conference rooms are on this
floor. By going through the long conference room, visitors may

see the air-conditioning and heating equipment.
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THE SCHOOL OF LIBRARY SCIENCE

It was at Kansas State Teachers College of Emporia that
the first library school west of the Mississippi was estab-
lished -- in 1%02. Sipnce that time -- with the exception of
an interval of three years following World War I -- a con-
tinuous program of instruction in library science has been
offered. During this long period of the teaching of library
science the College Library has built up a comprehensive
collection of books and periodicals in the field of library
science,

The extent of the library science curriculum offered by
the college through the years has varied, at different peri-
ods, from ninmeteen tc thirty or more semester hours in a
given year -- gradually leading up to a development (begin-
ning in the fall of 1928) of a standard, one-year library
school which, since April, 1932, has been fully accredited
by the American Library Association Board of Education for
Librarianship.

The demand for secondary school librarians as the re-
sult of new regulations by the Kansas State Department of
Public Instruction and the North Central Association neces-
sitated the development of an expanded program of instruc-
tion in the summer sessions. The summer offerings of the
library school have been expanded to permit students to
qualify uvnder the eight, sixteen, and twenty-four semester
hour reguirements for high school librarians or to complete
the work for a combined master's degree. Students with
eight bours of library science as a prerequisite may take a
gradoate degree with a8 twenty-hour major in library science
and ten hours in a related subject field.

Library science education is in a period of transition
and the library school of Emporia State College plans to re-
vise its curriculum and degree requirements in light of the
new standards.
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